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Please note/important notes: 

 
This tutorial letter contains the key to questions provided in tutorial letter 103. 

 
 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 

The keys to questions as per tutorial letter 103/3/2018 only cover certain of the study material in 
the study guide. This does not mean that the areas that are not covered are less important. All 
the study material in the various topics is of equal importance. 
 

2 IMPORTANT PRINCIPLES TO REMEMBER BEFORE YOU WORK 
THROUGH THE ANSWERS OF THE VARIOUS QUESTIONS 

 
NOTE:  Keep in mind that the mark allocation in the questions obtained from Graded 
Questions on Auditing 2018 by Gowar and Jackson is 1 mark per valid point, while you 
will be allocated 1½ marks per valid point described and 1 mark per valid point listed, 
unless stated otherwise. A 40-mark question thus requires 40 valid points from you, 
while, in the examination, the same question where each point is described will be worth 
60 marks (40 x 1½). 
 
You must take note of the following important principles before you work through the answers of 
the various questions: 

 

 You must write out the answer within the required time. 

 

 Mark your answer against the suggested solution. 

 

 Take note of the mistakes/omissions made and correct your answer. 

 When working through the solutions you must not study the solutions 
off by heart. Rather try and understand how we got to that solution, 
then you will be able to apply the principles to other questions as 
well. 

 

 Make notes in the study guide at the end of each learning unit of the 
mistakes made and aspects to concentrate on to obtain marks. 
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3 ANSWERS TO THE QUESTIONS 
 

TOPIC 1 – AUDIT EVIDENCE 
 
QUESTION 1 22 marks 
 
1. INVENTORY COUNT 

 

1.1 There is no reference to any risk assessment pointing to a particular risk of overstatement. 

 

1.2 There is usually risk associated with the existence of inventory (overstatement) but the 

level of testing being suggested does not seem warranted unless there is very material 

and specific risk to existence. 

 

1.3 In a general sense, emphasis can be placed on higher value items provided there is also 

some coverage of low and nil value inventory items.  A sample should be representative of 

the population but can be stratified. 

 

1.4 No rationale is given for aiming at 50% of the total value - this seems to be a particularly 

poorly considered approach with no indication of how many test counts will be needed! 

 

1.5 By testing only from the records to the physical inventory, no evidence will be gathered 

about the completeness of inventory.  A small sample for testing the other way should be 

selected.  In addition, the trainee’s method and reasoning do not make it absolutely clear 

whether he will be selecting from the records or from the physical inventory! 

 

2. PURCHASES 

 

2.1 There seems to have been no evaluation of the risk of misstatement in “purchases”. 

 

2.2 There is no indication of what testing the junior trainee will be carrying out – is he 

conducting tests of controls or tests of detail? 

 

2.3 Haphazard selection is not a totally random method of selection so this immediately 

negates the possibility of introducing statistical evaluation “should we want to”. 

 

2.4 Furthermore, statistical analysis requires that a proper statistical sampling plan be used.  

This requires setting out objectives, setting parameters, defining the population etc.  None 

of this has been done. 

 

2.5 There is no indication of the population size or what document(s) is actually being tested.  

Even without this information, 200 items selected is a very big sample. 

* Boredom is very likely to set in resulting in non-sampling error 

* A proper statistical sample is likely to be smaller and by using random tables, a far more 

representative sample will be obtained 

* Audit efficiency and effectiveness is improved if statistical sampling is used on large 

populations. 
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2.6 There is no indication of how the audit senior arrived at R5 000 as a cut-off.  Again, whilst 

stratification is perfectly acceptable, there must be some justification for setting the 

different strata.  As it stands, every purchase under R5 000 will be ignored and when 

combined, could make up a large percentage of purchases. 

 

Note: 2.2 above is a very important point, the sampling plan must match the objective of the 

test. 

 

3. COMPLETENESS OF CREDITORS 

 

3.1 Completeness is the assertion relating to creditors which tends to attract the greatest audit 

risk so the senior is correct with regard to its importance. 

 

3.2 However, MUS (monetary unit sampling) is not a sampling plan which matches to the 

objective of testing completeness. 

 

3.3 MUS tends to “hook out” the larger creditors balance from the list of creditors.  In testing 

for completeness we are more interested in creditors which are not on the list at all or 

which are understated.  Therefore MUS is not a suitable sampling plan. 

 

3.4 The audit team should be concentrating on all the other completeness of creditors tests, 

e.g. comparison with prior year balances, nil balances, cut-off testing for purchases, etc. 

 

3.5 The results of purchases testing will usually have a bearing on completeness of creditors 

testing (e.g. purchases cut-off).  The senior does not consider this but that is probably 

because he has not decided on, or defined, what tests he is conducting on purchases (see 

2.2). 

 

3.6 Successful statistical sampling (including MUS) is not just a matter of following step-by-

step instructions in the audit manual.  It is essential that the audit team in the field has a 

good understanding of the technique.  Steven Denham clearly lacks the understanding to 

make the sound professional judgement calls which are also required when applying MUS. 

 

4. DIRECTORS MINUTES 

 

4.1 The reason that all directors’ minutes are reviewed is that important decisions which the 

auditor may not discover any other way may be contained in the minutes. 

 

4.2 Although 24 sets of minutes may seem excessive (it is not really) it is not possible to 

extract any meaningful samples, statistical or otherwise because … 

 * directors meetings do not necessarily deal with the same matters from meeting to 

meeting, i.e. the sampling units are too dissimilar and their characteristics are too varied 

 * the population is far too small to perform a suitable sample 

 * furthermore before the auditor reviews minutes, he does not know exactly what he is 

looking for.  Of course he has an idea of matters which may arise, but there could be 

any number of matters which the auditor did not expect. 
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5. COST OF PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
5.1 Again no mention of any risk evaluation in respect of plant and equipment. 
 
5.2 It is not necessary to do such extensive verification of additions unless there is serious risk 

of overstatement. 
 
5.3 It appears as if only substantive work will be done on fixed assets.  Is there any rationale 

for this decision?  Why will there be no tests of controls over the acquisition of fixed assets 
including plant and equipment.  For example, if the authorising controls over additions (and 
disposals) of fixed assets are good and strictly applied, substantive work can be 
significantly reduced. 

 
5.4 Whatever the amount of testing is decided upon, there should be some physical inspection 

of a sample of all assets, not just additions, for existence (and physical 
condition/impairment purposes).  Assets included in the opening balance may no longer 
exist or be owned by the company.  The cost of any such assets should be removed from 
the plant and equipment accounts. 

 
5.5 Furthermore a sample of disposals will need to be verified to ensure that costs are 

properly removed from the records where necessary. 
 
QUESTION 2 22 marks 
 
a) I would not be satisfied with the work of Elvis Adams for the following reasons: 

1. Despite the selection of the twelve clients to be circularised being made on a 
random basis, the size of the sample is far too small to be representative of the 
population. 

2. In effect Elvis Adams has disregarded (or never considered) sampling risk. 
3. The population from which he has selected his sample is incorrect; the full 

population of sets owned by Screens (Pty) Ltd (14 000) should have been used; 
not the population of rented sets (alternatively, further existence tests should be 
carried out on sets on hand). 

4. He clearly gave no thought to the appropriate sampling plan to be used to achieve 
his objective, nor did he give any considerations to the parameters which should 
be set, e.g. confidence level. 

5. This further suggests that he gave very little consideration to the risks that may 
affect the existence assertion for television sets. 

6. His response to the sample results is totally inadequate 
6.1 Although it would be virtually impossible to meaningfully extrapolate the 

results of the sample over the population, Elvis Adams is not even aware of 
the need to do this. 

6.2 He has failed to follow up adequately on the no replies - it could be that 
these rentees are fictitious and that the televisions do not in fact exist - 
precisely what the test is attempting to prove. 

6.3 The follow up procedure for the returned television was not appropriate, he 
should have 
* established details of the return (e.g. date, documentation) number 

and inspected the television set if it was "in stock" or sought positive 
confirmation from the new rentee. 
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6.4 83% return is excellent for a circularisation BUT … 
* the circularisation is not, on its own, sufficient evidence and 
* the results must be analysed in relation to the population as a whole 

not in terms of the sample 
* it is a very small sample. 
 

7. Further audit procedures must be performed 
7.1 There is a chance that the sample is representative of the population of 

rented out sets - in which case there could be as many as 1/6 of 12 321 
sets which do not exist i.e. are with fictitious rentees.  This would mean a 
possible overstatement of inventory of approximately R5 million (total value 
R35 million) which is very material - further tests must be performed to 
reduce this risk to an acceptable level. 

 
b) 1. Further procedures 

1.1 Physically verify the existence of the television sets on hand. 
1.2 In preparation for 1.3 (below) set strict sampling parameters (high 

confidence, low tolerable misstatement) to address the risk relating to 
existence and obtain a sample size. 

1.3 Draw a random sample from the total population of rental agreements. 
1.4 For each rental agreement selected, trace by name and number to the most 

recent receipt of a rental payment 
* This would provide corroborative evidence that the set exists as 

clients will not pay for something they don't have. 
1.5 By inspection of deposit slips/bank statements, confirm that amount was 

banked 
* This would provide evidence that receipts are not simply fictitious 

book entries. 
1.6 Any rental agreement which cannot be tied to a payment would be 

regarded as a potential fictitious rentee 
* each of these would be followed up by phoning or faxing the rentee 

for positive confirmation of the existence of that particular television 
set (e.g. serial number) and rental agreement number. 

* The unsubstantiated rental agreements which remain should be 
extrapolated over the population and compared to the maximum 
tolerable misstatement.  This will give us an estimation of the 
number of rental agreements for which no payment has been 
recently received. 

1.7 The results of the test should be referred to the management of Screens 
(Pty) Ltd 
* If the extrapolation provides an unacceptable result then the client 

should be requested to investigate further and provide us with 
detailed explanations. 

* We should substantiate these explanations. 
* if the extrapolation falls within our tolerable misstatement, the matter 

is less of a problem with regard to our report on fair presentation but 
it will suggest an internal control breakdown which must be reported 
to management. 
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QUESTION 3.1 15 marks 
 
Concerns: 
 

1. The previous auditor did not perform his work with due care. His actions could bring the 
profession in disrepute.  (1½) 

2. He was negligent and knowingly issued a false report. (1½) 
 

3. He did not adhere to the SAICA Code of professional conduct. (1½) 
 

4. I would have reported his conduct to SAICA and IRBA. (1½) 
 

5. Previous auditor is reluctant to allow you to access his previous working papers.  (1½) 
 

6. Previous auditor did not attend physical stock counts.  (1½) 
 
7. Pressed for time - work not performed properly (integrity).  (1½) 
 
8. The previous auditor has issued an unmodified report while the financial statements 

might be wrong.  (1½) 
 

Effects on audit:  
 
1. Opening balances/comparative figures could contain material misstatements.  (1½) 

 
2. Specifically regarding the existence and valuation of opening inventory since he did not 

attend the count. (1½) 
 

3. Limited/No reliance can be placed on the previous report. (1½) 
 

4. The comparative figures have to be audited in the current financial period. (1½) 
 

5. This will result in additional work and therefore an increase in audit fee. (1½) 
 

6. Deadlines may have to be extended as a result of additional work.  (1½) 
 Maximum 15 marks 

 
QUESTION 3.2 15 marks 
 
1. Obtain the previous year’s financial statements (2017) and agree the inventory figures on 

the statement of financial position with the inventory opening balance (2017) in the general 
ledger. (1½) 
 

2. Agree the inventory opening balance (2017) in the general ledger with the value of the 
inventory indicated on the perpetual inventory list of 31 August 2017.  (1½) 
 

3. Perform valuation procedures on the perpetual inventory list 31 August 2017: 

 Trace suppliers’ invoices to cost price on perpetual inventory lists and applied in 
terms of cost formula.  (1½) 

 Test arithmetical accuracy on lists (quantity x cost price). (1½) 

 Test selling prices against price lists of 31 August 2017 or sales invoices.  (1½) 
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 Agree the selling prices to the cost prices used in the valuation of inventory to 
ascertain that inventory was accounted for at lower of cost or net realisable value. 
  (1½) 
 

4. Review the reasons for credit notes issued during the first few months after 31 August 
2017 and any customer complaints received may also be inspected to determine any 
obsolete or unusable inventory.  (1½) 
 

5. Inspect the minutes of meetings for any large write down of inventory during the first few 
months of the financial year.  (1½) 

 
6. Inspect journal entries for any large write down of inventory during the first few months 

of the financial year.  (1½) 
 

7. Compare the gross profit percentages/inventory days per year for 2017 with prior years’ 
and determine a trend.  (1½) 
 

8. Perform cut off procedures: (1½) 

 Goods received notes: Test 10 entries before and after 31 August 2017 that they 
are appropriately included and excluded from the inventory records.  (1½) 

 Sales invoices: Test 10 entries before and after 31 August 2017 that they are 
appropriately included and excluded from the inventory records.  (1½) 

 
9. Reconcile the units of the opening inventory of 2017 to the current inventory count 

of 2018 by using the following formula: opening units (2017) plus units purchased minus 
units sold equals the units as per the 2018 inventory count. (1½) 
 

10. As Chemico did perform an inventory count (‘the store manager informed you that the 
previous auditor never attended the inventory count’); additional procedures could be: 

 For a large sample of items on the inventory listing of 31 August 2017, agree the 
number of items on the listing to the physical count sheets of the inventory count 
performed by Chemico.  (1½) 

 Inspect the documented inventory count procedures (internal controls) to evaluate 
to what extend reliance can be placed on the inventory count performed by Chemico.  
  (1½) 

 Compare these documented procedures to the actual procedures performed during 
the 31 August 2018 inventory count to determine if reliance can be placed on the 
controls. (Compliance of procedures).  (1½) 
 

11. Obtain a management’s confirmation letter that opening balances for inventory are 
correctly reflected.  (1½) 

   
  Maximum 15 marks 
 
QUESTION 4.1 9 marks 
 
1. The risks of material misstatement of inventory are at an acceptable level.  (1½) 
 
2. Alternative sources of audit evidence can be used like last years’ working papers and 

analytical review procedures.  (1½) 
 
3. The nature, scope and objectives of Mr Mechanic’s work should be relatively easy to 

understand and can be verified through observing the production process.  (1½) 
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4. Hold discussions with Mr. Mechanic to familiarise yourself with the nature, scope and 
extent of his work.  (1½) 

 
5. Consider situations or events that may threaten Mr. Mechanic’s objectivity eg familiarity 

with management; intimidation threats etc.  (1½) 
 
6. Mr. Mechanic is employed by the entity on a contractual basis allowing scope for 

independence compared to a permanent employee.  (1½) 
 
7. On the other hand management can exercise control or influence over the work of Mr. 

Mechanic so this could be a threat that should be kept in mind.  (1½) 
 
8. Mr. Mechanic is a qualified engineer and possibly belongs to a professional society that 

has ethical standards and therefore a certain amount of professionalism can be expected 
from his work.  (1½) 

 
9. The auditor has previous experience with this client and therefore with the expert and 

would know if there are any risks.  (1½) 
   Total of possible 13½ marks 
   Limited to a maximum of 9 marks 
 
QUESTION 4.2 9 marks 
 
1. Consider the nature and scope of specific work to be performed by the internal auditors.  

 (1½) 
 

2. Consider if the work to be performed by the internal auditors is relevant to the external 
auditor’s overall strategy and audit plan.  (1½) 
 

3. Consider which areas of the audit involved significant judgements (1½) (i.e. the external 
auditor should make all significant judgements in the audit engagement and therefore 
should perform more work directly. Significant judgements includes: assessing the risk of 
material misstatement, evaluating the sufficiency of tests performed, evaluating the 
appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern assumption, evaluating 
significant accounting estimates, evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in the financial 
statements and other matters affecting the auditor’s report)  
 

4. Consider the degree of judgement needed to be exercised in planning and 
performing audit procedures and evaluating audit evidence (1½) (i.e. the external 
auditor will need to perform more audit procedures where the degree of judgement needed 
to be exercised in planning and performing audit procedures and evaluating audit evidence 
is high.)  
 

5. Consider the assessed risks of material misstatement at the assertion level for 
particular classes of transactions, account balances, and disclosures. (1½) 
 

6. Consider if the internal auditors’ organisational status and relevant policies and procedures 
adequately support its objectivity.  (1½) 
 

7. Consider the level of competence of the internal auditors.  (1½) 
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8. Consider whether using the work of the internal auditors to the extent planned will still 
result in the external auditor being sufficiently involved in the audit.  (1½) 

Total of possible 12 marks 
   Limited to a maximum of 9 marks 
 
 

TOPIC 2 – SUBSTANTIVE PROCEDURES: THE CONCEPTS 
 

QUESTION 5 10 marks 
 
1. Accuracy, valuation & allocation– inventory (establishing quantity). 
 
2. Rights & obligations – Motor vehicles. 
 
3. Accuracy, valuation & allocation – equipment (depreciation/impairment). 
 
4. Accuracy, valuation & allocation – inventory. 
 
5. Existence – equipment. 
 
6. Accuracy, valuation & allocation – trade creditors. 
 
7. Completeness – trade creditors, cut-off – purchases. 
 
8. Occurrence – salary expense (valid expense). 
 
9. Accuracy, valuation & allocation – debtors (allowance for bad debts). 
 
10. Rights – equipment, obligation – corresponding liability raised 
 
QUESTION 6 8 marks 
 
Analytical procedures on the sales value of Librarians: 
 
1. Inspect the financial statements and trial balance and compare the sales total of this year 

with the sales total of the prior year. (1½)  

 
2. Inspect the current financial year end’s financial statements and trial balance and 

compare the sales total with the budgeted sales total. (1½)  

 
3. Inspect the sales total in the financial statements of the current year and compare to the 

sales total in financial statements of other enterprises in the same operating 
sector/similar clientele. (1½)  

 
4. Calculate the gross profit margin of the current financial year and compare it to the 

gross profit margin of the prior financial year. (1½)  

 
5. Calculate the gross profit margin of the current financial year and compare it to the 

budgeted gross profit margin. (1½)  
 

6. Compare the increase or decrease in sales with the increase or decrease in debtors. 
(1½) If debtors increase and sales decrease follow up with management.  
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7. If you are provided with the general ledger indicating the monthly sales, you may also 
perform the following analytical procedure: Compare the sales on a monthly basis to the 
monthly budgeted prediction of sales. (1½)  

 
8. Follow up unusual fluctuations with management. (1½) 

Total of possible 12 marks 
   Limited to a maximum of 8 marks 
 
QUESTION 7 14 marks 
 
As physical verification is part of testing for occurrence of salaries (i.e. fictitious employees), I 
would select the following: 
 
1. All employees who have the same bank account number as another employee.  This is 

abnormal so I would want to physically verify such employees (note: there may be valid 
account sharing e.g. husband and wife). 

 
2. All employees for whom there is 
 2.1 No tax reference number 
 2.2 No identity number 
 All employees should have a tax and identity number and it is possible that employees with 

missing tax and identity numbers are fictitious. 
 
3. A sample of temporary staff still on the database.  It is easier to include “fictitious” 

employees by “engaging” and “dismissing” temporary workers. 
 
4. Any employees whose names and identity numbers or taxation numbers are identical.  

It may have been deliberately listed twice. 
 
5. A sample of employees from all locations in order to physically verify employees at each 

location. 
 
6. A sample of employees appointed during the year and who are still employed.  There is 

a higher risk that these employees were fictitiously appointed. 
 
7. A random sample (or possibly a random sample after stratification by grade) of the entire 

population.  We need a representative sample but there are likely to be many more 
employees in the grades say 8 to 12. 

Total of possible 14 marks 
   1 mark for sample and 1 mark for explanation 
 
QUESTION 8 25 marks 
 
1. Accuracy and valuation of inventory 

 
1.1 Use CAATs to recalculate the cost of total inventory (multiply the quantity on hand and 

the unit cost fields). 
 
1.2 Use CAATs to recalculate the total value of inventory (total cost of inventory less 

amounts written off). 
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1.3 Use CAATs to compare the total inventory value (as calculated above) with the value in 
the general ledger and trial balance. 

 
1.4 Use CAATs to scan the inventory master file for “error” conditions, and print an 

exception report with differences to follow up with management. For example (1½ mark 
each): 
- Average unit cost of low-end bicycles that exceeds the selling price 
- High-end bicycles that are below the cost of R15 000 or exceed the cost of 

R40 000 
- Zero in the quantity on hand field, but with the date of the last receipt more 

recent than the date of the last sale 
- Negative unit cost, quantity or selling price 
- Duplicate item codes  

 
1.5 Use CAATs to select a sample of inventory item codes for high-end bicycles and 

compare the unit cost in the master file with the purchase prices on the purchase 
invoices, taking IAS 2 into account where all costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
inventory have to be taken into account (eg purchase price, import duties, taxes, transport, 
handling costs). 

 
1.6 Use CAATs to select a sample of inventory item codes for low-end bicycles and inspect 

the reasonableness of the unit cost (which is carried at weighted average) by comparing 
the unit cost with the purchase prices on the purchase invoices, taking IAS 2 into account 
where all costs directly attributable to the acquisition of inventory have to be taken into 
account (eg purchase price, import duties, taxes, transport, handling costs). 

 
1.7 Use CAATs to select a sample of inventory item codes (high-end and low-end bicycles) 

and, referring to information obtained from the bank, confirm that the correct exchange 
rate was used (on the date of the transaction) to determine the cost from foreign 
currencies. 

 

2. Accuracy and valuation impairment 

 

2.1 Use CAATs to select a sample of inventory items from the master file and trace the selling 
price per item to the most recent sales invoices. 

 
2.2 Use CAATs to select a sample of sales invoices after year end and compare the selling 

prices on the invoices with those listed in the master file. 
 
2.3 Use CAATs to extract items still in inventory at year end with selling prices below unit 

costs, and discuss the need for write-down with management. 
 
3. Slow-moving or obsolete stock 

 
3.1 Use CAATs to extract an exception report of inventory on hand at year end that reflects 

zero year-to-date sales or no sales for more than 6 months to identity slow-moving or 

obsolete stock, and discuss the need for write-down with management. 

 
3.2 Use CAATs to perform an analytical procedure to identify slow-moving or obsolete 

stock by comparing this year’s purchases with this year’s sales, and the months during 

which the movement of purchases does not correlate with a similar movement in sales, 

and perform a detailed analysis.  
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3.3 Use CAATs to extract a list of all discontinued items and inspect the most recent sales 

invoices for these items (including sales after year end) to establish realistic selling prices 

and to discuss the need for write-down with management. 

 

3.4 Use CAATs to compare the actual write-off of inventory in the current year with the 

previous year’s allowance for obsolete stock to determine whether the allowance is 

reasonable. 

 

3.5 Use CAATs to perform the following analytical procedures to provide evidence of the 

reasonableness of the allowance for obsolete stock: 

- Compare the current year’s allowance as a percentage of inventory with the previous 

year’s allowance. 

- Compare the current year’s inventory turnover ratio with the previous year’s inventory 

turnover ratio to determine whether inventory turnover has slowed down.  

- Compare the current year’s days of inventory on hand with the previous year’s days of 

inventory on hand. 

 

3.6 Use CAATs to reperform the calculations used to determine the allowance for obsolete 

stock. 

 
4. Analytical procedures 

 
4.1 Use audit software to perform the following analytical procedure:  

- Compare the inventory balance of this year with the inventory balance of the previous 
year. 

Total of possible 34½ marks 
  Limited to a maximum of 25 marks 

   

TOPIC 3 – FORMULATING SUBSTANTIVE PROCEDURES FOR THE CYCLES 
 

QUESTION 9 18 marks 
 

1.  Reperform the bank reconciliation. 
 
1.1 Clear all reconciling items e.g. outstanding cheques on the 30 November 2017 

reconciliation to the post November bank statements.  (Note: cheque no 49378 is still 
outstanding.) 

 
1.2 Trace all entries (deposits and cheques) from the cash book for December, January and 

February to the bank statements for Dec, Jan, Feb to identify reconciling items, e.g. 
outstanding cheques. 

 
1.3 Inspect the bank statements and cash book for any unmatched items; and by inspection, 

confirm that they appear in the reconciliation. 
 
1.4 Total bank charges reflected on the bank statements and confirm their correct entry in 

the cash book, and in the case of February charges of R163.00, in the reconciliation (see 
below pt 5). 
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1.5 Cast the cash book and the reconciliation. 

 

1.6 Confirm the balance per cash book at R127 261.30. 
 
1.7 Confirm the balance per bank statement at R222 873.60. 
 
1.8 Test the logic of the reconciliation.  
 
2. Obtain directly from the bank: 

 
2.1 A certificate confirming the balance at 28 February 2018 of R222 873.60. 
 
2.2  A cut-off bank statement showing all movements on the account between the 

28 February and the current date. 
 
3. Outstanding cheques. 

 
3.1 Long outstanding cheques. 
 

Trace cheque no 49378 to prior months (Jan, Dec, Nov) bank reconciliations to 
confirm that it was reflected as outstanding. 
 
Agree the cheque amount to invoices/statements and confirm by enquiry of Otis 
Redding, that the amount represents a bona fide payment. 
 
Enquire of Otis Redding as to whether … 
* The payee has been contacted 
* The cheque has been stopped 
* A new cheque has been issued.  
 

 Request that the cheque be written back in the cash book (it is stale).  (The amount 
should be reflected as owing at the year-end.) 

 
3.2 Cheque no 52133. 
 
 Trace cheque 52133 to the cut-off bank statement, and if the cheque has not been 

presented by enquiry of Otis Redding (and the payee, if Otis Redding agrees) establish 
why it has not been presented (it is long outstanding and for a material amount). 

 
3.3 Cheque no 53193. 
 
 Obtain the supporting documentation for this payment and confirm that it was for a valid 

expense for Beachbreak (Pty) Ltd and that it was authorised. 
 
 Explain and evaluate an explanation from Otis Redding as to why this payment was not 

made by EFT as it was over R20 000 (consider whether it could be fraudulent in any way, 
as cheque payments may be subject to less stringent controls). 
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3.4 Other cheques. 
 
 Agree the other cheques outstanding to the cut-off bank statement.  If not yet presented, 

agree to invoices/statements and confirm that the amounts represent bona fide 
payments. 

 
3.5 Inspect the cut-off bank statement to establish whether any cheques with numbers lower 

than the last cheque number for the financial year, other than those in the reconciliation, 

appear. (None should be found).  

 

4.  EFT Deposit. 

 

4.1 Inspect the cut-off bank statement to confirm that the bank has reversed the incorrect 

deposit. 

 

4.2 If not enquire of Otis Redding or inspect correspondence with the bank to confirm that the 

bank has been notified of the incorrect deposit. 

 

5. Bank charges and fees for February 2018. 
 

5.1 Although not material, request Otis Redding to record the bank charges of R163.00 in the 

February 2018 cash book. 

 
QUESTION 10 20 marks 
 

c) Existence 

 

1. Subsequent receipts testing. 
 

1.1 Using our audit software, I would select a small sample of debtors from the debtors 

masterfile at 31 May 2018.  

 

1.2 Using the enquiry facility, I would print out the account record for the debtors selected at 

the end of June and July 2018 to identify payments received from these debtors after May 

2018. 

 

1.3 Using the document references on the account as well as any remittance advices 

available, I would inspect dates on the sales invoices and matching customer signed 

delivery notes to confirm that the payment is in respect of a sale made prior to year-end 

31 May (i.e. the debtor existed at year end). 

 

2. Cut off 
 I would obtain the signed customer delivery notes for, say, the last 20 sales invoices prior 

to 31 May (and any material sales entered in May) to confirm that delivery took place prior 

to 31 May i.e. the debt existed at that date. 
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3. New debtors 
 Using the audit software, I would identify new account holders by comparing the list of 

debtors at 31 May 2018 with the list of debtors at 31 May 2017.  I would then trace these 

debtors to their initial credit applications etc to substantiate their existence. 

 

4. Error conditions 
 Using the audit software, I would scan the masterfile for any “error” conditions which might 

indicate existence problems e.g. duplicate account numbers, figures in the amount column 

but no name, account details, etc. 

 

5. Proof of delivery 
 For any debtors for which there is no subsequent receipt, trace amount owed to the debtor 

signed delivery note to confirm delivery took place to correct address prior to 31 May. 

 

Accuracy, valuation – gross amount 

1. Using the audit software, I would cast the individual balances on the debtors masterfile 

and compare it to the debtors control account/trial balance. 

 

2. Using the audit software, I would extract any negative balances (credit balances) from the 

masterfile, follow up, and if necessary, request that they be reversed. 

 

3. I would review the debtors control account for any unusual items and would cast the 

account. 

 

Valuation – allowance for bad debts 

1. By enquiry of Monty Zuma and/or Marcel Roux, I would: 
 

1.1 Confirm whether the “percentage of aged amounts” method of establishing the allowance 

was still being used AND; 

 

1.2 That the percentages (current 0%, 90 days 15% etc) were still the same as used in prior 

years. 

 

1.3 Determine whether they had considered the need to make changes to the policy or 

percentages in view of the new policy on credit limits and payment terms. 

 

2. However, as it is not acceptable from an accounting perspective to use this general 

percentage method unless the percentages correlate very strongly with prior years and 

other relevant evidence, I would seek evidence that this is the case by analyzing the trend 

of actual bad debts write off for the prior three years against the allowances made, I would 

assess whether the company’s allowance was reasonable. (Essentially we as auditors 

need to be satisfied that the value at which accounts receivable is reflected in the AFS is 

fair and any “impairments” have been accounted for.) 

 

3. By inspection of the minutes of the monthly directors meetings (June or July) I would 

confirm that the current allowance was authorised. 

 

 



AUE3702/102 
 

 
19 

4. Using a (small) randomly selected sample from the masterfile, I would test the ageing of 

debtors by tracing the amounts owed, to the source documents to determine whether they 

had been allocated to the correct time period. (I would use the enquiry facility to print out 

detailed accounts of each debtor to assist in this procedure). 

 

5. Using the audit software, I would extract a list of debtors who had: 
 

5.1 Exceeded their credit terms (e.g. debtors with a 30 day limit and amounts in the 60 day 

and/or 90 day and over field). 

 

5.2 Total amounts owing which exceed their credit limit. 

 

5.3 A hold on their account. 

 

I would then discuss the recoverability of each of these debts with Monty Zuma, inspect 

any relevant correspondence/documentation to assess the need to specifically write off 

additional amounts, I would also relate this evidence (specific debtors) to the blanket 

percentages used for the allowance. 

 

6. I would reperform all calculations in respect of the allowance. 
 

7. I would perform an analytical review of the allowance: 

 Comparison to prior years 

 Comparison of ageing to prior year (what is the effect on this of the changed credit 
policy) 

 Calculation of ratios (e.g. allowance as a % of sales, days outstanding debtors) and 
comparison to prior years. 

 
QUESTION 11 15 marks 
 

General Procedures 

1.  Inspect the Racketman (Pty) Ltd statement to confirm that … 

 

1.1 The statement balance is R592 876 
 

1.2 The statement date is 25 April 2018 
 

2.   Inspect the Racketman (Pty) Ltd account in the creditors ledger to confirm that the balance 

is R348 460. 

 

3.  Review the Racketman (Pty) Ltd account in the creditors ledger for any unusual or 

unexplained entries (and if necessary, follow up with creditors personnel)  

 

4.  Reperform … 

 

4.1 The casts of the reconciliation and the Racketman (Pty) Ltd account in the creditors ledger 

the logic of the reconciliation (i.e. amounts have been correctly added or subtracted). 
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5. Inspect the Racketman (Pty) Ltd’s May statement to confirm that the necessary 

adjustments for reconciling items have been made by Racketman (Pty) Ltd e.g. correcting 

invoicing error. 

 

6. Review Sporting Life (Pty) Ltd’s receiving records for any goods received by the company 
from Racketman (Pty) Ltd between the 25 and 30 April 2018 

 

Electronic transfer 

1. Inspect Sporting Life (Pty) Ltd’s April bank statement to confirm that … 

 

1.1 an amount of R134 533 was transferred to Racketman (Pty) Ltd 
 

1.2 The transfer was effected before 30 April 2018 

 

Invoice number 7493 

1. Confirm by inspection of Racketman (Pty) Ltd’s April statement, that invoice 7493 was 

included in the balance of R592 876 for an amount of R76 913. 

 

2. Inspect the dates (of acceptance) on the Racketman (Pty) Ltd delivery note and 

corresponding Sporting Life (Pty) Ltd goods received note to confirm that delivery only 

took place on 7 May 2018 and not prior to 30 April 2018. 

 

Goods returned note 1017 

1. Inspect correspondence from Racketman (Pty) Ltd, acknowledging that it is responsible for 

the damage to the racquets and that they will pass a credit note for the full amount. 

 

2. Inspect Racketman (Pty) Ltd’s April statement to confirm that invoice 7216 was: 

 

2.1 Included in the balance owing of R592 876 

 

2.2 For an amount of R46 290. 

 

3. Inspect goods returned note 1017 to confirm that it: 

 

3.1 Was signed by an official of Racketman (Pty) Ltd, acknowledging receipt of the returned 

goods 

 

3.2 Was for damaged tennis racquets as supplied on invoice 7216. 

 

4. Confirm with the audit manager that these racquets were not included in inventory at year 

end. 

 

Error invoice 7001 

1. Inspect invoice 7001 to confirm that the balls were charged at R14.80. 

 

2. Inspect original order for the rugby balls (or official supplier price list to confirm that the 

correct price of the rugby balls is R148.00, not R248!). 

 

3. Reperform the calculation (100 x R133.20) to confirm the amount of the adjustment. 
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4. Inspect correspondence notifying Racketman (Pty) Ltd of the mistake and requesting that 

the correct invoice be submitted. 

 
QUESTION 12 25 marks 
 
1. General/Accuracy and valuation 
 
1.1 Using the audit software, extract a listing of creditors at 30 April 2018 sorted between 

"foreign" and "local".  

 Compare the totals on this listing with the listing produced by Tim Finn. 

 Agree total on listing to the creditors control account and follow up on any 
reconciling items. 

 
1.2 Agree the total of the accrual and creditors control accounts in the general ledger to the 

trial balance. 
 

1.3 Reperform casts of the creditors control account. 
 

1.4 Using the audit software 

 Identify any debit balances on the masterfile, follow up reason with Tim Finn and 
consider whether the balances should be transferred to debtors.  

 Search masterfile for any abnormalities such as blank fields, duplicate creditor’s 
names. 
 

1.5 Extract a sample of creditors from the masterfile (which includes the company’s major 
suppliers) and obtain the year end creditors reconciliations performed by the creditors 
clerks.  

 Reperform casts on reconciliation.      

 Agree balances on reconciliation to creditor’s statement and  creditors listing.    

 By inspection of supporting documentation and by inquiry and confirmation, 
confirm the validity of reconciling items. 

 Confirm that the logic of the reconciliation is correct. 
 

1.6 Extract a sample of foreign creditors and by scrutiny of supporting documentation 
and purchase records, determine the amount owed to the creditor in the foreign 
denominated currency. 

 
1.7 Obtain from a financial institution (or suitable publication) the currency exchange 

rates ruling at 30 April 2018 and 

 Compute the amount owed to the creditor at 30 April 2018 in the local currency 
(rands). 

 Compare these results to the amount recorded on the creditors masterfile and, if 
necessary, request adjustment. 

Note: transaction should have been recorded originally at “date of transaction” rate and 
the resulting creditor must be restated at year-end if there has been a change in 
rate. 

1.8 Obtain the list of accruals from Tim Finn   

 Cast the list. 

 Agree the total on the list to the account in the general ledger, the trial balance 
and the balance sheet (the amount will be included in creditors). 
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 Agree amounts recorded on the list to invoices, statements, etc. and perform any 
calculations, e.g. leave-pay accrual. 
 

2. Obligation/Existence 
 
2.1 Using the audit software, extract a small random sample of both local and foreign 

creditors and inspect the relevant statement to confirm the obligation is valid and that 
the creditor exists (obviously not conclusive proof), but this is a low risk assertion.  

 
2.2 Inspect the last say 10 GRN’s for the year and corresponding delivery notes to confirm 

that delivery took place prior to the 30 April 2018 i.e. proof that the creditor "existed" at 
balance sheet date. 

 
3. Completeness 
 
3.1 Using the audit software compare the creditor’s masterfiles at 30 April 2018 to 30 April 

2017 to identify: 

 Creditors on the 30 April 2017 masterfile who do not appear on the 30 April 2018 
masterfile and  

 Creditors balances which are significantly smaller at 30 April 2018 than at 30 April 
2017 

And by enquiry and inspection, determine the reason. Consider the results of these tests 
in relation to the overall reduction of 22% in the trade payables balance. Discuss this 
specifically with Tim Finn and obtain and confirm his explanation as to the reduction e.g. 
he may claim that a decline in sales has resulted in a reduction of purchases, corroborate 
this by inspection of sales of that supplier’s products for the year under audit. 
 

3.2 Inspect the "Disputes" file for correspondence relating to unsettled disputes with 
suppliers, and by discussion with Tim Finn and the financial accountant, determine 
whether any adjustments to creditors are required. 

 
3.3 Confirm that the journal entry raising the liability for all unmatched GRN’s at 30 April 

2018 is accurate and complete by: 

 Matching the GRN to invoices subsequently received, or  

 By pricing the unmatched goods received notes (only necessary if no invoice 
has been received from supplier.) 
 

3.4 Inspect the GRN’s made out for the first 4 or 5 days after the 30 April 2018, and by 
reference to the corresponding delivery note, confirm that the goods were not actually 
received prior to year-end (i.e. the liability should be raised at year end). 

 
3.5 Select large payments (or sample) from the post 30 April 2018 cash payments journal 

and by inspection of supporting documentation, confirm that if the payment relates to 
goods or services received prior to year-end, a creditor has been raised. 

 
3.6 Inspect work papers from attendance at inventory count and investigate any 

instances of physical inventory materially exceeding recorded inventory as this may 
indicate deliveries received prior to year-end which have not been recorded (and for 
which a liability should be raised.) 

 
3.7 By inspection of the general ledger expense accounts and comparison of the current 

year accruals list, to the previous year’s list, determine whether all accruals have been 
correctly raised: 
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 12 debits to monthly expense accounts, e.g. rent. 

3.8 Perform analytical procedures and follow up on any material fluctuations e.g. 

 Current year purchases and creditors at year end to prior years 

 Creditor’s days compared to prior years. 
The results obtained here should correlate with results of 3.1 above. 
 

3.9 Enquire of the financial accountant whether suppliers of services (as opposed to goods) 
who provided the service prior to 30 April 2018 have been raised as creditors. 

 
3.10 Include reference to the completeness assertion for "Trade Accounts Payable and 

Accruals" in the management representation letter. 
 
QUESTION 13 30 marks 
 
a) At the year-end inventory count I would have … 
 
1. Inspected each of the six units “in progress” to confirm their physical existence. 
 
2. Matched each of the units to the job card and sequenced checked the job cards (3276 to 

3281). 
 
3. Noted the stage of completion recorded on the job card and, by inspection and enquiry of 

factory personnel, evaluated whether it was reasonable. 
 
4. Where possible I would have noted whether the physical unit corresponded with the job 

card, e.g. serial number of pumps charged to job cards actually matched the pumps 
installed in the units. 

 
5. By enquiry of factory personnel and observation, I would have confirmed that no other jobs 

were in progress at year-end (completeness). 
 
b) Labour.  I will … 
 
1. Obtain the payroll records for wage weeks 49 to 52 and by inspection confirm that the 4 

permanent employees … 
 * worked the hours recorded on the job cards 
 * That the rate of pay for each of them was recorded, e.g. Preston R80. 
 
2. Compare the labour hours worked to the “materials and labour schedule” to confirm that 

for an 80% complete unit, the hours are reasonable. 
 
3. Inspect any records available to support the payment of the casual employee and enquire 

as to why he was required. 
 
Materials 
 
The imported Speck pumps 
 
1. Obtain the Speck Pump Inc invoice, and all important documentation (shipping wharfage, 

customs duty etc) and reperform the cost calculation for the pump and … 
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1.1 Verify that the exchange rate used to convert the German currency to Rand was the rate 
ruling at the date of the purchase transaction (not year-end). 

 
1.2 Confirm the rate used by enquiry from a financial institution/reliable financial publication. 

 
1.3 Confirm that the appropriate import and customs duties were included by inspection of 

supporting documentation. 
 

2. As the pumps were imported as a batch of 20, confirm that the total cost of the batch was 
accurately and equally allocated over the 20 pumps, to arrive at a unit cost of R54 292. 

 
Locally purchased materials 
 
3. Obtain a copy of the stores requisitions for the pivot arm, the piping and joints and the 

consumables … 
 
3.1 Confirm by reference to the “materials and labour schedule” that the items described on 

the SR are used in the manufacture and not duplicated. 
 
3.2 Confirm by inspection that the dates on the requisitions are prior to the 31 March and 

(probably) dated during March. 
 
4. By enquiry of the warehouse foreman (or similar), determine the suppliers of the goods 

and trace the goods to the supplier’s invoices … 
 
4.1 Confirm that the items requisitioned have been charged to the job card at the correct price 

and that in terms of company policy.  
 
4.2 The correct cost formula has been applied i.e. FIFO. 
 
4.3 If any charges have been added to the purchase price, confirm that they qualify for 

inclusion (e.g. carriage inwards) and agree the detail to the supporting invoices. 
 
Overheads 
5. Request a breakdown of the overheads of R14 200 allocated to the job: 
 
5.1 By enquiry of the cost accountant and inspection of supporting documentation, confirm 

that only fixed or variable production costs have been included and 
 
5.2 That the overheads have been … 

* based on normal capacity and 
* allocated on a systematic basis which is reasonable. 

 
Additional cost 
6. Request that the amount of R18 610 for the pivot arm which fell off the forklift, be reversed 

out of work-in-progress.  This cost does not qualify as a “cost of conversion” as it is 
abnormal waste and should be written off. 

 
Lower of cost or net releasable value 
7. Determine by … 

* Discussion with John Graham and the cost accountant and 
* Comparison of the cost to date of the 80% complete unit to the cost of the fully 

completed units and 
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* The selling price of the unit (obtained from the contract with Turnerfarms Ltd) 

Whether the cost has already exceeded the selling price or is likely to do so.  If so, ensure 

that the necessary adjustments and/or disclosures are made. 

 

General 

8. Reperform the casts and calculations on the job card. 
 

9. Confirm (at a later stage) that an amount of R139 785 (R158 395 – R18 610) is correctly 

included in the total amount for work-in-progress. 

 
QUESTION 14 40 marks 
 
a) Completeness of inventory 

 

1. At the inventory count 
 

1.1 Whilst attending the year-end inventory count, I will select a sample of books (title, author, 
ISBN number and quantity) from all categories of books stored in the warehouse. 
 

1.2 I will then trace each title selected in the sample, to the inventory sheets (agreeing details 
and quantity) to confirm that the title has been correctly included in the count. 
 

1.3 Inspect the inventory sheets to ensure …  
* All inventory listed was counted, e.g. an amount in the quantity field and 

* confirm, by for example sequence testing, that all inventory sheets were included in the 

valuation of inventory. 

Note: if inventory is valued using the inventory masterfile (which is likely) a small complete-

ness test of “inventory sheet to masterfile” should be carried out. 

 

2. Cut-off 
 

2.1 In the period following the inventory count, I will obtain all the goods received notes for 
deliveries made to Bookbox (Pty) Ltd on 29 and 30 July 2018 and prepare a schedule of 
titles and quantities received on these days. 
 

2.2 Once the final inventory sheets are available, I will confirm by inspection, that these 
deliveries have been included in the inventory at 31 July 2018 (Note : a similar exercise 
will be conducted on books sold on 29, 30, 31 July, but this is not a completeness test). 

 

3. Imported books 
 

3.1 By inquiry of Barry Potter, and inspection of orders/import documentation, I will confirm 
that any orders for which the risks and rewards of ownership have passed to Bookbox 
(Pty) Ltd at 31 July 2018, but which have not yet been received, e.g. are in transit, or are in 
a clearing warehouse, are included in the year-end inventory figure. 
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b) Valuation 
 

Masterfile accuracy: I will 

 

1. Compare the quantities of a sample of titles on our (auditor’s) copy of the inventory 

sheets/work papers to the final masterfile. 

 

2. Using the audit software, scan the entire inventory masterfile for: 
 

2.1 Any missing fields. 
 

2.2 Any negative quantities. 
 

2.3 Any titles with negative quantities and negative unit costs. 
 

2.4 Duplicate records/ISBNs. 
 

3. Using the audit software, reperform the quantity x unit cost calculation (for each title) and 
compare the result to the amount in the value field of the masterfile to identify differences 
(none should be found but errors must be followed up). 

 

4. Confirm that all damaged inventory identified at the inventory count (by the audit team) is 
included in the authorized masterfile amendments passed to correct the inventory 
quantities at year end. 

 

Pricing:  I will … 

 

5. using the audit software, select a sample of titles from publishers, both local and foreign. 

 

6. For local purchases, trace the titles selected to the relevant publisher’s invoice, to confirm 

that the correct unit price has been used in the inventory masterfile: 

 

6.1 As the company uses FIFO as its cost formula, where the quantity on hand exceeds the 

quantity purchased per the most recent invoice, the invoice(s) prior to the most recent 

invoice will be inspected to confirm unit prices used. 

 

6.2 Where carriage inward costs have been included in the unit cost, agree amounts to 

transport invoices and evaluate the method of allocation of the total carriage inward cost to 

the various titles, for accuracy and reasonableness. 

 

7. For purchases from foreign publishers: 
 

7.1 Trace the titles selected to the relevant suppliers invoice to obtain the unit cost in the 

foreign currency. 

 

7.2 By enquiry of Barry Potter and scrutiny of the purchase agreement/shipping documents, 

determine the date of transaction and obtain (from a financial institution) the relevant 

foreign exchange rate at date of transaction. 
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7.3 Reperform the conversion calculation and agree it to the amount used in costing the title. 

 

7.4 By inspection of the shipping agent’s invoices, confirm that import duties, custom duties 

and shipping charges used in arriving at the cost of the title, are correct. 

 

7.5 By inspection and reperformance of the company’s costing of imported inventory, confirm 

that the allocation of 7.4 costs are appropriately allocated (accurate and reasonable) to the 

titles imported. 

 

Lower of cost or net realizable value: I will 

8. Using the audit software, compare the unit cost field to the selling price field for all titles, to 

identify any instances where cost exceeds selling price (none should be found but any 

instances should be followed up). 

 

9. For a sample of titles, verify the selling price reflected in the inventory masterfile by 

reference to: 

 

9.1 Sales price lists. 

 

9.2 The most recent sales invoice for the title. 

 

10. Compare the selling price of a sample of invoices in the post-balance sheet period, to the 

unit cost in the masterfile of the titles sold, to confirm that the net realizable value exceeds 

the unit cost. 

 

11. Perform an overall analytical review of inventory comparing the value of inventory at 

31 July 2018, to inventory at 31 July 2017, e.g.: 

 

11.1 Total inventory. 

 

11.2 Inventory by category (audit software can be used to determine value by category). 

 

11.3 Inventory as a percentage of total assets, current assets. 

 

c) 

1. By reference to the prior year workpapers and discussion of the process for determining 

the write-down, I will evaluate whether it is: 

 

1.1 Consistent with prior years. 
 

1.2 Appropriate for the business.  

 

2. I will enquire of management as to whether any specific events have occurred which might 

have a direct effect on the write-down, e.g. the banning of a particular title; sales 

suspended due to copyright infringements. 
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3. Using our audit software, I will extract from our audit copy of the inventory masterfile, a 

listing of all titles for which the date of last sale is prior to 1 November 2017 (9 months), 

and for which a number appears in the “quantity on hand field”. 

 

4. For these titles, I will: 

 

4.1 Calculate the total quantity of units (books) to be placed on the clearance sale by totaling 

the quantity on hand field. 

 

4.2 Calculate the total write-down prior to adjustment for unsold books by multiplying the unit 

cost price reduced by R50, by the quantity of units on hand for each title, and totaling the 

result (unit cost – R50) x quantity.  

 

5. To confirm that the write-down has been correctly increased for the donation of the unsold 

books, I will: 

 

5.1 Extract the total number of books sold on the clearance sale from the inventory clearance 

invoices, and deducts it from the total number of books initially written down (see 4.1 

above), and multiply the result by R50.  This will give the amount by which the original 

write-down must be increased. 

 

The total write-down thus calculated should be compared to the client’s write-down and 

any difference resolved. 

 

6. Using the audit software, I will extract a list of all titles with a high “quantity on hand” : 

“quantity sold year to date” ratio, e.g. there are say 200 copies in the inventory and only 30 

have been sold during the year.  I would discuss each of these titles with management to 

establish whether they should be written down. 

 

7. I will perform an analytical review on the write-down, e.g.: 

 

7.1 By comparison to prior year write-downs. 

 

7.2 The current year write-down per category (easily done using the audit software), to prior 

years. 

 

7.3 The write-down as a percentage of inventory, compared to prior years. 

 

8. I will discuss with Barry Potter the approval process for the write down, e.g. is the write-

down reviewed independently and authorized at a high level.  

 

9. In the management representation letter, I will include a specific reference to the adequacy 

of the write-down for slow moving inventory. 

 
QUESTION 15 10 marks 
 

Audit procedures to detect fictitious employees 

1. I would select a sample of employees from the payroll for the current wage period and 
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1.1 conduct a physical verification of each employee selected (on a surprise basis) either by 

accompanying Jacques Jakkals when he hands out the employee payslips or at any time 

during working hours 

1.2 Employee identity card/staff card should be inspected and matched against details of 

staff selected from the payroll.  (If possible, ID documents should be checked against the 

ID number on the employee masterfile.) 

1.3 match the employees selected to the supporting documentation in their personnel file 

(in the HR department) e.g. 

 Match employee’s signatures on the payslip distribution sheet (signed when 

receiving their pay slips from the foreman) to their signature on the employment 

contract. 

 Inspect evidence of registration with the CIR, unions, medical aid etc. 

 Inspect copies of identity documents as well as documents reflecting banking 

details (wages paid directly into the bank) and tax reference numbers and  agree 

to masterfile. 

2. I would use my audit software to interrogate the employee masterfile for conditions 

which suggest the inclusion of “dummy workmen” e.g. 

2.1 Duplicate employee numbers. 
 

2.2 Duplicate employee identity numbers. 
 

2.3 Duplicate bank account numbers. 
 

2.4 Missing fields (particularly those which a valid employee should have e.g. ID 
number, tax number, bank account). 

 
3. Using the “period to period” reconciliations (either side of the base period which is 

being audited) I would trace the additions and removal of staff to and from the 
payroll to the respective masterfile amendment form to confirm that: 

 
3.1 All movements are authorised and supported by appropriate documentation and 

3.2 That the movement has been recorded in the correct period particularly in the case 

of removals of employees from the masterfile. 

4. I would select a sample of resignation/dismissal advices from the personnel 

records (or from the factory foreman records) and trace these to the respective 

masterfile amendment forms to confirm that the employee had been removed 

from the payroll and that the removal took place effective from the correct wage 

period. 

 
QUESTION 16 48 marks 
 

b) No, this treatment is not appropriate.  
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Reason 

1. This event occurred in the financial year under audit and must therefore be dealt with in 

the financial statements at 31 July 2018. 

 

The Isuzu 

2. As it stands the motor vehicles account includes a vehicle which does not exist and the 

balance is thus overstated. 

 

3. Similarly a loss which the company has suffered prior to year-end has not been accounted 

for; profits are therefore overstated. 

4. The question now arises as to whether it is appropriate to raise the insurance company as 

a debtor (for the insured amount) and offset the loss (3 above) at reporting date. 

 

4.1 In terms of IAS 37 “where as a result of past events there is a possible asset (the debtor) 

whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events (the court case) not wholly within the control of the entity, an asset may only be 

recognised if the inflow of economic benefit is virtually certain. 

 

4.2 Even if the inflow of economic benefit is probable, the asset cannot be recognised but 

disclosure is required (description and financial effect). 

 

4.3 If the inflow is not probable then no asset can be raised and no disclosure is required (the 

loss is simply treated as any other loss, see 3 above). 

 

5. As the lawyers will not comment on the likelihood of the case succeeding, the best course 

of action would be to recognise the loss (3 above) and include some disclosure which fully 

and accurately explains the situation.  

 

The cement truck 

6. Glassguard (Pty) Ltd acknowledge that the company is responsible for (has an obligation) 

the damage to the cement truck and the amount is known -R300 000. 

 

6.1 Therefore this obligation must be accounted for in the financial statements at 31 July 2018. 

 

7. The question again arises as to whether the insurance company can be raised as a debtor 

(asset) for any portion of this loss which it will reimburse Glassguard (Pty) Ltd. 

 

8. IAS 37 states again that for an asset to be raised the expected reimbursement must be 

virtually certain. 

 

9. In this case it is not virtually certain so an asset cannot be raised. 

 

10. Based on the available evidence, no decision can be taken on whether reimbursement will 

take place so the loss should be recognised  and (as there appears to be an expectation of 

reimbursement) the matter should be disclosed, see 5 above. 
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c) Existence 

 

1. Using the audit software, I will search the vehicle masterfile for duplicate registration 

numbers and duplicate engine numbers (none should be found).  If there are, follow up. 

 

2. Using the audit software I will extract a sample of vehicles from the vehicle masterfile 

which includes vehicles from all branches (registration number, engine number, 

description, location, book value.) 

 

2.1 For those locations (branches) which are accessible to Durban, I will arrange to inspect the 

vehicles (after hours, Saturday) and agree the registration number, engine number, 

description to the sample. 

 

2.2 For those locations (branches) which are accessible to our firm’s offices in Cape Town and 

Johannesburg, I will communicate in writing with these offices, providing them with details 

of the vehicles to be inspected and request that a physical verification be conducted. 

 

2.3 For any locations not covered by 1.1 and 1.2, I will … 

  * seek corroborating evidence from the monthly operating cost returns submitted to the 

head office e.g. petrol invoices, repairs invoices etc, around year-end. 

 * send a confirmation letter to the branch manager requesting him to confirm the 

existence of the vehicles listed as being at that location. 

 

3. I will analyse any sundry revenue accounts for evidence of any vehicles sold and if any 

vehicles have been sold I will confirm that they have been included as a disposal. 

 

4. I will review correspondence with the insurance company, inspect the schedule of vehicles 

and discuss with Shatterprufe Shabalala as to whether any vehicles have been removed 

from the schedule of insured vehicles. I will establish whether any such vehicles have 

been disposed of and if so confirm that they have been accounted for as a disposal. 

 

Completeness 

1. When physically inspecting vehicles I will identify a few vehicles at the branches and will 

trace their details to the vehicle masterfile to confirm that they are included. (Trainees 

carrying out the physical inspection on our behalf will be asked to do the same). 

 

2. In the confirmation letter to the branch manager I will request him to include details of any 

vehicles at the branch which do not appear on the letter sent to him to sign. 

 

3. I will confirm with Shatterprufe Shabalala that there are no vehicles on financial lease. 

 

4. I will compare the engine number fields on the current year masterfile with the prior year 

masterfile.  Any prior year engine number not reflected in the current year masterfile 

should be agreed to the list of vehicles disposed of (auctioneers list). 
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Rights 

1. For the sample of vehicles selected, I will inspect the registration document (log book) and 

licence renewal receipt to confirm that … 

 

1.1 the engine numbers agree 
 

1.2 The documents are in the name of Glassguard (Pty) Ltd. 
 

2. by enquiry of management and inspection of … 

Prior year workpapers 

Bank confirmations 

Directors minutes of meetings 

 I will determine whether there are any encumbrances on the motor vehicles e.g. offered as 

security. 

 

Accuracy and valuation – cost 

1. I will agree the opening balances on the summary schedules to the prior year work 

papers/general ledger accounts. 

 

2. Using the audit software, I will: 

 

2.1 Extract a list reflecting the cost of all vehicles purchased during the year (use date of 

purchase field) and agree the total on the list to the vehicle cost schedule. 

 

2.2 Extract a list of the cost and accumulated depreciation of all vehicles disposed of during 

the year (use date of disposal field) and agree the totals on the list to the cost and 

accumulated depreciation schedules. 

 

2.3 Reperform the “depreciation for the year” calculation and agree the total to the 

accumulated depreciation schedule. 

 

2.4 Reperform the calculations and extensions in the vehicle masterfile, e.g. cost less 

accumulated depreciation = book value. 

 

3. Confirm by inspection of the journal entry and ledger accounts that the correcting entry for 

the Isuzu written off (Cost and Accumulated Depreciation) has been affected (and the 

supporting schedules amended).   Assuming the directors agree to writing off the Isuzu.  

 

Valuation – additions 

 

Occurrence 

4. Using the audit software, I will select a sample of additions for the year (date of purchase 

field) from the vehicle masterfile (registration number, engine number, description, 

location, cost) and 

 

4.1 trace each vehicle to its purchase documentation i.e. invoice from Tekwini Motors, and 

confirm that the invoice was made out to Glassguard (Pty) Ltd.  
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5. I will inspect the cash payment records to confirm that payment was made for each vehicle 

in the sample. 

 

Accuracy, classification, cut-off 

6. I will inspect the Tekwini Motors invoice for each vehicle to confirm that the cost entered in 
the vehicle Masterfile … 

 

6.1 Agrees with the invoice 

 

6.2 Excludes VAT and licence costs (if paid by the garage) 

 

6.3 Includes the costs of adapting the vehicle to transport glass. 

 

7. I will inspect the dates on all invoices to confirm that the transaction took place in the 

financial year under audit (cut off) 

 

8. I will trace the postings for the transaction (from the cash payment records) to the general 

ledger accounts to confirm that the cost, VAT and licence fee have been correctly posted 

to the appropriate accounts (classification). 

 

Valuation - Disposals 

 

Occurrence 

9. Using the audit software I will extract from the vehicle masterfile a list* of all vehicles 

disposed of during the year (date of disposal field) and: 

 

9.1 Will trace each vehicle on the list to the “Auctioneer’s Sale List” confirming all details of the 

vehicle (registration, engine number etc). 

 

 Note:   The only vehicles on this list should be the 20 Corsa bakkies. 

 

10. I will inspect the sundry records/deposit slips for confirmation that the proceeds of the 
auction less auctioneers’ fees were received. 

 

Accuracy, classification, cut-off 

11. Using the audit software, I will reperform the accumulated depreciation calculation to date 
of disposal for each vehicle.  

 

12. I will then evaluate whether the method of allocating the selling price of R1 400 000 to the 
20 sold vehicles is appropriate (note: vehicles were sold as a single lot). 

 

13. I will then reperform the profit or loss on the sale of each vehicle and agree the total to the 
overall loss of R212 800 (R2 520 000 – R907 200 = 1 612 800 – 1 400 000 = R212 800) 
and the Vehicle masterfile. 

 

14. I will inspect the date on the auctioneer’s documentation to confirm that the disposal took 
place in the year under audit (cut-off). 
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15. I will confirm by inspection that the Vehicle and Accumulated Depreciation Accounts and 
Loss on Disposal Accounts have been correctly amended (classification). 

 

Accuracy and valuation – allowance for depreciation and impairment 

1. I will confirm with Shatterprufe Shabalala that the accounting policy for depreciation has 

not changed and that the depreciation rate and method are 20% per annum reducing 

balance.  

 

2. Using the audit software, I will reperform the depreciation calculations for the year in the 

vehicle masterfile to confirm that the depreciation policy has been complied with and that 

the depreciation for the year agrees with the summary schedule (adjusted for the written 

off Isuzu). 

3. I will request the trainees from our other offices performing the physical verification to 

inspect for and enquire of the branch managers about any damaged or “not in use” 

vehicles which may need to be written down (I will do the same on my physical inspection). 

 

4. I will include in my confirmation letter to branches not visited by our firm, a request that the 

branch manager provides details of any damaged, or “not in use” vehicles which may need 

to be written down. 

 

5. I will inspect the branch monthly operating costs returns to head office for evidence of 

vehicles that have been in accidents, are at panel beaters etc and if any are identified, 

discuss the need to write them down with Shatterprufe Shabalala. 

 

6. Bearing in mind that the company lost R212 800 on the sale of 20 vehicles, I will discuss 

with the company whether the depreciation rate remains appropriate. (Profit/loss in prior 

years will need to be considered, and will determine whether management reviewed the 

useful life and residual values of the assets.) 

 

6.1 I will enquire of the directors as to whether they have re-evaluated the useful life and 

residual values of the vehicles. 

 

7. I will perform a simple analytical review on the allowance for the year, e.g. … 

Comparison to prior years 

Comparison by location to other locations/prior year. 

 

8. I will discuss the reasonableness of the allowance with the company and evaluate the 

appropriateness of the approval process. 

 

d) Occurrence : I will … 

 

1. Inspect the Memorandum of Incorporation to: 

 

1.1 Confirm that the company is authorised to issue debentures. 

 

1.2 Ascertain whether there are any specific requirements for such issues e.g. authorised by 
shareholders, loan covenants which must be adhered to. 
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2. Inspect the minutes of the meeting of directors at which the decision to issue the 

debentures was taken and confirm that the meeting was quorate and the motion was duly 

authorised. 

 

Note: if the Memorandum provide for other authorisation procedures it will be necessary 

to inspect relevant documentation.  Shareholder approval is not normally required 

for a non-convertible debenture issue. 

 

3. Inspect the debenture agreement (and minutes) to confirm: 

 

3.1 The details of the private investors to whom the debentures were issued. 

 

3.2 That the issue was for ten, 9% non-convertible debentures redeemable at a premium of 

10% after 5 years. 

 

3.3 Whether any security has been granted to the debenture holders. 

 

4. Inspect the register of debenture holders to confirm that the register of details of the 

debenture holders per the debenture agreement and minutes agree. 

 

5. Inspect the cash receipts journal, deposit slips/bank transfers for evidence that the 

payments were received and deposited. 

 

Accuracy, cut-off, classification: I will: 

 

1. Reperform the casts to confirm that R1 million was received. 

 

2. Trace the receipts of cash from the cash receipts journal to the general ledger to confirm 

that it was posted to the correct account (debenture liability). 

 

3. Confirm that the cost of the debenture has been correctly adjusted to its fair value taking 

into account the premium by: 

 

3.1 Reperforming the effective rate of interest calculation and its application. 

 

3.2 Inspecting the journal entry raising the adjusted finance cost and tracing it to the ledger 

accounts. 

 

4. Inspect the dates on all documentation to confirm that they fall within the accounting period 

under audit (cut-off). 

 

Completeness: I will: 

 

1. Confirm by inspection of the directors minutes and enquiry of the directors as to whether 

any other debenture issues took place. 
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QUESTION 17 24 marks 

 
PART B 
 
1. Occurrence – the share issue recorded has actually occurred (it is not fictitious) and it 

pertains to the company 

1.1 Inspect the Memorandum of Incorporation to determine whether there are any restrictions 

or requirements in respect of Flintstones (Pty) Ltd’s power to issue shares, noting the 

class and number of shares that the company is authorized to issue. 

1.2 Inspect the MOI to determine whether the pre-emptive rights for (existing) shareholders 
have been limited, negated or restricted 
* If so, by inquiry of the directors/inspection of relevant documentation, confirm that 

the MOI was adhered to in relation to the pre-emptive rights of the existing 
shareholders 

* If not, inspect correspondence to confirm that the existing shareholders, most of 
whom are not participating in the issue, have renounced their pre-emptive rights. 

 
1.3 In terms of Sec 41 of the Companies Act 2008, the issue of shares to a director must be 

approved by a special resolution of the shareholders  
* This issue is to the four directors and none of the exemptions to Sec 41(1) apply. 
 

1.4 Inspect the notice of the shareholders meeting at which the issue was authorized to 
confirm that 
* The notice was in the prescribed form (and written) 
* Notice of 10 business days prior to the meeting was given (MOI may provide a 

shorter or longer minimum period) 
* The date, time and place of meeting were adequately specified 
* The general purpose of the meeting was included 
* Increase in authorized shares. Note 1. 
* Issue to the directors 
* Adequacy of the price (consideration) of the shares to be issued.  Note 2. 
* A copy of the proposed resolutions to be considered at the meeting and the 

percentage of voting rights needed to adopt the resolution was included. 
* A statement that shareholders could appoint a proxy to act on his or her behalf. 
 
Note 1: the board may be empowered (by the MOI) to increase the authorized shares, 

but the issue of shares to directors must go to a shareholders meeting. 
 
Note 2: the consideration (R10) is determined by the board.  As it is board members who 

are “benefiting” from this issue, the other shareholders should indicate that they 
are satisfied with the consideration in relation to the value of the company.  The 
only grounds on which the consideration can be challenged is that the directors did 
not comply with Sec 76 (standards of Directors Conduct) in that they used their 
positions as directors to gain a personal advantage or to knowingly cause harm to 
the company. 

 
1.5 Inspect the minutes of the meeting to confirm that: 

* It was quorate (three shareholders present holding at least 25% of the voting 
rights). (Note: The MOI can specify a higher or lower percentage) 
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* Consent was given by the percentage required for special resolutions as 
stipulated in the MOI and stated in the notice to the meeting (75% of voting rights 
unless different in the MOI). 

 
1.6 Inspect a copy of the Notice of Amendment (to the MOI) filed with the Commissioner and 

agree details to notice and minutes. 

2. Accuracy – amounts and other data relating to the share issue have been recorded 

appropriately.  

2.1 Reperform the calculation (100 000 shares at R10 each) of the total amount of the 

issue. 

2.2 Inspect relevant documentation e.g. lawyer fee notes, to confirm that the R5 000 

share issue expenses were genuine share issue expenses   

2.3 Inspect the cash receipt journal, bank deposit slips/bank statements, for evidence 

of the receipt and deposit of the R1 000 000. 

2.4 Inspect the register of shareholders to confirm that Klippies Kritzinger and Rocky 
Radebe have been added as the owners of 25 000 shares each, and that Fred 
Flint and Stan Stones’ holdings have been increased by 25 000 shares each. 
 

3. Cut-off – the share issue was recorded in the correct accounting period (financial year 

end 31 July 2018). 

3.1 Inspect the dates on the documentation pertaining to the issue to confirm that the 
issue took place in November 2017. 
 

4. Classification – the amounts pertaining to the issue have been recorded in the correct 
accounts: 
 
4.1 By inspection of the general ledger, confirm that the share capital account has 

been increased by R100 000 and that 

4.2 Retained earnings have been reduced by R5000. 

5. Completeness – all share issues that should have been recorded, have been recorded  

5.1 By enquiry of the directors (and whilst reviewing the minutes), confirm that no 
other share issues took place. 

 
PART C (i) 
 
1. I would inspect the lease agreement with Technicut Ltd, to determine whether the 

conditions of the lease are such that the risks and rewards of ownership of the cutter are 

transferred from Technicut Ltd to Flintstones (Pty) Ltd. (If so, the lease may be 

capitalized as a finance lease). 

1.1 Does ownership of the cutter transfer to Flintstones (Pty) Ltd by the end of the lease 

term? 

1.2 Is there a bargain purchase option which is likely to be exercised? 
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2. I would calculate the present value of the future minimum lease payments to determine 

whether they are equal to substantially all of the cutter’s fair value. 

3. I would enquire of the directors as to whether 

3.1 The lease term is equal to the major part of the cutter’s economic life. 

3.2 The cutter is of a specialized nature such that only Flintstones (Pty) Ltd can use it without 

major modification.  

3.3 The company is likely to exercise any bargain purchase options (see 2 above). 

3.4 There is an opportunity for Flintstones (Pty) Ltd to continue the lease at a rent 

substantially lower than the market rent on conclusion of the initial agreement. 

 

PART C (ii) 

I would 

1. Review minutes of the directors meetings for evidence of any other leases which have 

been entered into and which may be finance leases.   

2. Enquire as to the source of funding for any new fixed assets (e.g. machinery) which were 
identified during the audit of fixed assets and confirm that they were not acquired on 
finance lease (or long-term loan). 

 
3. Inspect the other leases into which the company has entered during the year (as 

identified on Rashid Ramsi’s schedule), to confirm that they do not satisfy the 
requirements of a finance lease, i.e. they are operating leases. 

4. Match lease/rental payments made through the cash payments journal to the relevant 

lease agreement/Rashid Ramsi’s schedule, to confirm that all leases have been 

identified (any missing leases must be evaluated to determine whether they are finance 

leases). 

5. Obtain specific representation from the directors that no other finance leases have been 
entered into. 

 
 

TOPIC 4 – EVALUATING, CONCLUDING AND REPORTING 
 
QUESTION 18 4 marks 
 
b) 

1. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose 

existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity, or 

 

2. A present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized (as a liability) 

because: 

* It is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 

* The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 
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c) A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount, and a liability is a present obligation 

arising from a past event, whereas a contingent liability is a possible (it will only be 

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future event) obligation that arises 

from a past event.  The essential difference is the level of certainty of the event. 

 

QUESTION 19 32 marks 
 
a) The auditor is concerned about related parties because there is increased risk of material 

misstatement arising from transactions with such parties. 

 

 By definition a related party is not independent of the client company and the client may be 

in a position to influence the transaction to the extent that it is no longer “arm’s length” or is 

presented in a misrepresented manner for the purposes of manipulating the financial 

statements. 

 

b) An arm’s length transaction is a transaction conducted on such terms and conditions as 

between a willing buyer and a willing seller who are unrelated and are acting 

independently of each other and pursuing their own best interests. 

 

c) 

1. Review prior year working papers for names of known related parties. 

 

2. Review the entity's procedures for identification of related parties. 

 

3. Enquire as to the affiliation of directors and officers with other entities. 

 

4. Review shareholders records to determine the names of principal shareholders or, if 

appropriate, obtain a listing of principal shareholders from the share register. 

5. Review minutes of the meetings of shareholders and the board of directors and other 

relevant statutory records, such as the register of directors' interests. 

 

6. Enquire of other auditors currently involved in the audit (say a group audit) as to their 

knowledge of additional related parties. 

 

7. Review the entity's income tax returns and other information supplied to regulatory 

authorities. 

 

d) 

1. Transactions that have abnormal terms of trade, such as unusual prices, interest rates, 

guarantees and repayment terms. 

 

2. Transactions that lack an apparent logical business reason for their occurrence. 

 

3. Transactions in which substance differs from form. 

 

4. Transactions processed in an unusual manner. 
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5. High volume or significant transactions with certain customers or suppliers as compared 

with others. 

 

6. Unrecorded transactions, such as the receipt or provision of management services at no 

charge. 

 

7. Transactions which appear to be overly complex. 

 

e) I will 

 

1. Promptly communicate the relevant information to the other members of the engagement 

team (this will enable them to determine whether the information affects the procedures 

they have conducted or plan to conduct based on the risk assessment). 

 

2. Request management to identify all transactions with the newly identified third party. 

 

3. Inquire as to why the entity’s controls over related party relationships and transactions 

failed to identify/disclose this one. 

 

4. Perform appropriate substantive procedures relating to the newly identified relationships or 

transactions e.g. making enquiries regarding the nature of the relationship, verifying the 

terms and conditions of the transaction to determine whether appropriate accounting and 

disclosure requirements have been applied. 

 

5. Reconsider the risk that other undisclosed related parties or significant related party 

transactions may exist, and perform additional identification procedures as necessary. 

 

6. Evaluate whether the non-disclosure by the directors was intentional (an attempt to hide 

the fact) and if so, I will evaluate the implications for the audit as a whole as it would 

suggest that the risk of material misstatement and the presence of significant risk may 

have increased. 

f) 

1. The completeness of information provided regarding the identification of related parties 

and all the related party relationships and transactions of which they are aware. 

 

2. The adequacy of related party disclosures in the AFS i.e. appropriately accounted for and 

disclosed. 

 

g) 

1. In terms of the Act, an individual is related to another individual if they are: 

 

1.1 married or live together in a similar relationship or are separated by no more than two 

degrees of natural or adopted consanguinity (blood) or affinity (marriage). 

 

From an audit perspective, a related person per the Act would be considered as a related party 

IAS 24 – Related party disclosures, states clearly that a person who is a family member of 

certain related parties as defined e.g. a member of key management, will be a related party. 
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More important is the fact that a transaction with a related person attracts the same risk as 

explained in (a) above. 

 

h) 

i Yes 

ii Yes 

iii Yes 

 

If Baggdad Ltd entered into a transaction with any of (i) (ii) or (iii) it would be a related party 
transaction. 
 

QUESTION 20 25 marks 
 

a) 

1. Procedures commonly performed by auditors to identify post balance sheet events. 

 

1.1 Review of the minutes of meetings. 

* Shareholders 

* Directors 

* Audit committees and 

* Other executive committees 

held after balance sheet date. 

 

1.2 Review of the firm’s latest available financial information, including budgets, cash flow 
forecasts and other management reports. 
 

1.3 Consideration of relevant information that has come to the attention of the auditor from 

sources outside the entity e.g. information gathered by the audit firm’s technical 

department from trade journals and other publications. 

 

1.4 Enquiry and confirmation or extension of previous enquiries of the entity’s legal advisers 

concerning litigation claims and assessments. 

 

1.5 General discussion and specific enquiries of management as to whether any material 

events have occurred after the balance sheet date which affect the financial statements 

being reported on. 

 

1.6 Scrutiny of the basic accounting records after the financial year end date for large 

payments, receipts, etc. 

 

1.7 Obtaining a management representation letter on PBE's specifically. 
 

1.8 Analytical procedures. 

 

1.9 Discussion with management on procedures they have carried out to identify subsequent 

events. 
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b) 

1. Roadcarry (Pty) Ltd 

 

1.1 The financial statements at 31 December are at present incorrect, the insurance company 
cannot be raised as a debtor, as they have said they will not pay Roadcarry (Pty) Ltd. 

 

1.2 In terms of IAS 37, any income from the insurance company can only be recognized if its 
receipt is virtually certain. In this case it is not. 

 

1.3 The subsequent event (notification by the insurance company that no payment would be 
made) gives additional information about a situation which existed at 31 December 2017. 

 

1.4 As the existence of the truck at balance sheet date could not be confirmed/established, it 
was correct to remove it from the accounting records (AFS). 

 

1.5 The full loss on the theft of the truck should be recognised in the income statement at 31 
December 2017. 

 

1.6 A note giving a full explanation, including the intention to take the insurers to court, should 

be included in the AFS.  

 

2. B M Car Manufacturers Ltd 

 

2.1 Costs will need to be incurred in respect of modification to all vehicles assembled up to 31 

December 2017 regardless of whether they were sold before that date, or were in stock at 

that date. 

 

2.2 The costs incurred in respect of modification to vehicles assembled after 31 December 

should be written off in the current financial year not the year under audit. 

 

2.3 As the condition existed at 31 December, adjustments (change to the income statement) 

must be made for the amounts in 2.1 at 31 December 2017. 

 

2.4 The company should have already created a warrantee provision and this should be 

increased by the estimated cost of the modifications to vehicles assembled from launch 

date to year-end.  (If the company wishes to reflect this amount in a separate provision it 

may do so.) 

 

3. Ausum Trucks Ltd 

 

3.1 As it stands, the investment in Financebond Ltd would have been shown at fair value i.e. 

the quoted price on the JSE (which we would have confirmed). 

 

3.2 This was, according to the post balance sheet date information, an over inflated value, by 

virtue of a fraud which was in existence at year-end but which was not known. 

 

3.3 This amounts to a contingent loss as the true value of the investment will only be known 

once the liquidation of Financebond Ltd is completed. 
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3.4 On the basis of the information available to the directors of Ausum Trucks Ltd, it is 

impossible to make an adjustment to the financial statements at 31 December 2017: 

* Although it is probable that the value of the asset will be impaired. 

* The amount cannot be reasonably estimated. 

 

3.5 To comply with IAS37 (Contingencies) this contingency should be disclosed in the 

following manner: 

* The nature of the contingency. 

* The uncertain factors (amount and timing) relating to the loss. 

* A statement to the effect that an estimate of the contingent loss cannot be made. 

 

4. Sport Fibre (Pty) Ltd 

 

4.1 Inventories of resin and glassfibre must be shown at the lower of cost or net realisable 

value in the December 2017 financial statements. 

 

4.2 With the lifting of restrictions, the net realisable value of Sport Fibre (Pty) Ltd's inventory is 

likely to decline. 

 

4.3 However if the net realisable value does not decline to below cost, then inventory is being 

correctly presented in terms of the International Reporting Standards and no obligatory 

adjustment or disclosure in the 31 December 2017 financial statement is required.   

 

4.4 If the net realisable value of inventory held at 31 December 2017 does decline to below 

cost, then disclosure should be made as follows: 

* Explanation of the lifting of trading restrictions. 

* An estimate of the financial effect, before and after tax, of the lifting of trading 

restrictions. This estimate should include any losses which may be incurred on 

purchase contracts already signed if the NRV of the goods to be purchased is below 

cost price. 

 

4.5 As the lifting of restrictions was not in existence at 31 December 2017, adjustment to 

inventory would be inappropriate (where net realisable value has declined to below cost). 

 
QUESTION 21 15 marks 
 

1. The adoption of the going concern assumption means that the entity is viewed by the 

directors (and users) as being able to continue in business for the foreseeable future and 

assets and liabilities are recorded on the basis that the entity will be able to realize its 

assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. 

 

2. The objectives are 

 

2.1 To obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of the directors’ 

use of the going concern assumption in the preparation and presentation of the financial 

statements. 
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2.2 To conclude, based on the evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists that 

may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

 

2.3 To report in accordance with ISA 570 (revised). 

 

3. 

3.1 No, going concern is not an assertion as per ISA 500 – Audit Evidence; it is a basis of 

preparation for financial statements.   

 

3.2 Adoption of the going concern basis will have an effect on some of the assertions e.g. 

inventory is usually valued at cost on the assumption that the company will sell the 

inventory but if the company is to cease trading, then net realisable value (in this case 

what the company can get for the goods in a forced sale) is more likely to be the value at 

which inventory is reflected.  Similarly plant and equipment will have a “going concern” 

value and a “not a going concern” value. 

 

4. No, the auditors (and directors) cannot guarantee future events and conditions.  Going 

concern is about predicting the future and nobody can guarantee the future. 

 

5. 

5.1 No, the risk assessment stage is not the only “stage” at which going concern is considered 

by the auditor. 

 

5.2 The auditor considers going concern at all stages of the audit.  Para 11 of the going 

concern ISA states that the auditor shall “remain alert throughout the audit for audit 

evidence of events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 

continue as a going concern”. 

 

5.3 The auditor will consider going concern right up until the signing of the audit report (as a 

subsequent event procedure). 

 

6. 

6.1 Yes it is.  The auditor himself must obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to express an 

opinion on the financial statements; it is not just a matter of taking the directors’ word for it 

because they have done the assessment. 

 

6.2 Of course, where the directors have performed an assessment, the auditor will discuss the 
assessment with the directors as part of the evidence gathering process. 

 
7. A mitigating factor is a fact or circumstance which “supports” the adoption of the going 

concern assumption particularly when a significant uncertainty exists which casts doubt on 
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

 
8. Modified report – adverse opinion (the financial statements do not present fairly). 
 
QUESTION 22 10 marks 
 
1. 1.2 
 
2. 2.2 



AUE3702/102 
 

 
45 

3. 3.3 
 
4. False (registered auditor is compulsory, chartered accountant is voluntary) 
 
5. 5.3 
 
6. 6.3 
 
7. 7.3 
 
8. 8.4 
 
9. 9.2 
 
10. 10.4 
 
QUESTION 23 12 marks 
 

No. Nature Material and/or 
pervasive 

Opinion 

1. Insufficient appropriate evidence 
Scope limitation 

- disclaimer 

2. Disagreement (misstatement) 
Inappropriate application of standard 

Material  
 - 

3. Disagreement (misstatement) 
Inappropriate selection of standard 

 - adverse 

4. Added paragraph: Material Uncertainty 
Related to Going Concern 

 - unqualified 

 
5. 

Disagreement (misstatement) 
Inappropriate disclosure 

Material  - 

6. Disagreement (misstatement) 
Inappropriate selection of standard 
 

Material and 
pervasive 

 - 

7. Insufficient appropriate evidence 
Scope limitation 

Material  - 

8. Disagreement (misstatement) 
Inadequate disclosure/inappropriate 
application 

 - except for 

 
QUESTION 24 18 marks 
 

Independent auditor’s report 
 
To the shareholders of Cordon Proprietary Limited 
 
Qualified Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Cordon Proprietary Limited set out on pages 5 to 
30 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the statement of 
profit and loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
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of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion except for the effect of the matter described in paragraph 1 and the omission of 
information described in paragraph 2 of the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, the financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Cordon Proprietary 
Limited at 31 March 2018 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, 
in conformity with the International financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act in South Africa. 
 
Basis for qualified opinion 
 
1. As described in note 5 to the financial statements, the company has valued its inventory at 

anticipated replacement value.  International Accounting Standard IAS10 – Inventories, 
requires that inventory be valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.   This 
departure from the accounting standards has resulted in inventory being overstated in the 
statement of financial position by R1 750 000 and reserves by the same amount.  Total 
comprehensive income for the year has been correspondingly overstated by R1 750 000. 
Taxation was calculated on the correct basis and hence no adjustment to taxation payable 
is required. 

 
2. All material transactions between the company and related parties must be disclosed in 

terms of International Accounting Standards (IAS) 24 – Related Party Disclosures.  During 
the year under audit the company entered into material transactions with entities or 
individuals which are by definition, related parties through their connection to directors of 
Cordon (Pty) Ltd.  Details of these transactions have not been disclosed as required by 
IAS 24. 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  Our 
responsibilities under these standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the 
company in accordance with the IRBA Code of Professional Conduct for Registered 
Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independent requirements applicable to performing audits of 
financial statements in South Africa.  We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to 
performing audits in South Africa.  The IRBA Code is consistent with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B).  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our qualified opinion. 
 
Jimmy Oats 
 
James Oats: partner 
Registered Auditor 
x Hall and Oats 
x Registered Auditors 
x 63 Jett Way 
x Brakpan 
1 May 2018 
 
x = not required if report is presented on a Hall and Oats letterhead. 
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QUESTION 25 30 marks 
 
1. The title of the report should read “Independent Auditor’s Report” not independent report 

as the latter does not convey that it is an audit report. 
 
2. The report should be addressed to the shareholders not the board of directors. 
 
3. The trainees report is not appropriately structured (formed) and the content (wording) of 

the required sections is either incomplete or left out altogether. 
 
4. The report should be structured as follows 
 4.1 The report should commence with the Opinion section. 
 4.2 Followed by a Basis of Opinion section. 
 4.3 The next three sections will be separate sections which deal with Other 

Information, the responsibilities of the Directors, and the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
section. 

 
5. Opinion section 
 5.1 The opinion section is in the wrong place in the given report, and does not have a 

heading (a heading is required regardless of whether or not it is a modified 
opinion). 

 5.2 The opinion section should commence with a description of what has been 
audited.  The given report attempts to do this but has numerous mistakes 
* “We have evaluated” should read “we have audited”. 

  * The components of the financial statements should be included in the 
paragraph e.g. the statement of financial position, the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flow, notes to 
the financial statements and summary of significant accounting policies. 

 * Date of the statement of financial position and period end (i.e. 30 June 2018) 
should be included. 

  * Reference to “evaluating for fairness” does not come into this section and is in 
any event, not how the auditor’s function is expressed. 

  * The audit is not carried out in terms of the MOI of the company; it is carried out 
in terms of the ISA requirements.  No reference to this is required in the 
introductory paragraph. 

  * The pages on which the annual financial statements are set out should also be 
set out in this paragraph. 

 5.3 The opinion section is supposed to convey an opinion on whether the financial 
statements “present fairly”, in all material respects the 

 * Financial position of Litetech (Pty) Ltd at 30 June 2018 
 * its financial performance and cash flows for the period then ended in 

accordance with the IFRSs and the requirements of the Companies Act of 
South Africa. 

 5.4 The opinion section does not convey this but instead gives an opinion on “whether 
or not there are any outstanding issues from the audit”. 

 5.5 The basis of opinion section and not the opinion section state that the audit is 
conducted in terms of the ISAs. 

 5.6 Furthermore, the audit is not conducted in terms of the IFRS (the trainee is 
confusing this with the basis of presentation of the financial statements). 
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6. Basis of Opinion section (paragraph commencing “We report ……”) 
 6.1 The opinion expressed in the given report appears to be a qualified opinion so this 

section should provide an explanation of the qualification.  
 6.2 However, it is completely unclear what the paragraph is trying to convey. 
 * It is incorrect to include the information about the expert and unclear as to 

whether work-in-progress is misstated.  There is no indication that there 
was any problem with WIP 

 * It is also confusing (and inconclusive) for a user, for the report to indicate 
that the risk assessment warranted an expert; was this risk resolved or not? 

 * Again what is the point of including point 2?  If the matter is material to fair 
presentation and has not been properly disclosed then a qualification is 
required on the grounds of misstated information (disclosure).  The user is 
simply left wondering 

 * With regard to the wage fraud, it appears to be an immaterial matter with 
regard to financial reporting (small wage fraud).  There is no reason to bring 
it up in the audit report. 

6.3 In addition there is no mention of the auditor’s compliance with his independence 
and ethical responsibilities in terms of the IRBA Code and the corresponding 
international pronouncements. 

 
7. “Management’s” responsibilities 
 7.1 There is no heading to indicate what the paragraph is about. 
 7.2 Although it is positive that the “management responsibility” section was included, 

its content is incomplete and inaccurate and it should actually be directors 
responsibilities. 
* No mention that directors are also responsible for fair presentation in 

terms of the IFRSs and 
* The requirements of the Companies Act 
* No mention that management is responsible for such internal controls are 

needed to enable the preparation of financial statements that are “free from 
material misstatement”, whether due to fraud or error 

* Although there is a reference to fraud, it is mentioned in the context of 
preventing fraud, not in the context of preparation of the financial 
statements which are free from material misstatement 

* No mention that the directors are responsible for assessing going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting to prepare the financial 
statements. 

 
8. Auditor’s responsibilities 
 8.1 There is no heading to indicate what the paragraph is about. 
 8.2 The auditor’s responsibility is not to detect fraud which has not been prevented by 

the directors; the auditor assesses the risk of misstatement arising from both fraud 
and error and responds to the risk by devising an appropriate audit strategy and 
plan. 

 8.3 The section does not comply with the requirement of ISA 700 (Revised) or 705 
(Revised) at all.  This paragraph is supposed to describe/explain the auditor’s 
responsibilities, e.g. 

 * obtain reasonable assurance that FS are free of material misstatement and 
report an opinion thereon 

 * explain that reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but not a 
guarantee that an audit will always detect material misstatement when it 
exists 

  * exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
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 * assess risk; consider internal control (but not to express an opinion on 
internal control) 

 * evaluate accounting policies for appropriateness, and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and overall presentation 

 * conclude on the going concern basis of accounting/existence of material 
uncertainties 

  * evaluate overall presentation, structure and content etc 
  * communicate with the directors on audit matters. 
 
9. The audit report should include an additional section below the Basis of Qualified opinion 

section headed "Other Information" This section should 
 9.1 State that the directors are responsible for the other information.  
 9.2 Explain that part of the audit of financial statements is for the auditor to read the 

other information (which includes) the Directors’ Report for the purpose of 
identifying whether there are any material inconsistencies between the other 
information and the AFS. 

 9.3 State whether or not there are any inconsistencies as applicable. 
 9.4 Indicate that as the directors’ report (other information) has not been audited, no 

opinion is expressed on it. 
 
10. Emphasis of Matter 

 The emphasis of matter paragraph is only included where there is a matter which has 
been adequately dealt with in the AFS but which requires, in the opinion of the auditor, to 
be emphasized.  The paragraph is not included if there is nothing which meets this 
requirement.  This appears to be the case for the Litetech (Pty) Ltd audit report. 

 
11. Signing off 
 11.1 The date of the report cannot be the date of the financial year end. 
 11.2 The report should be dated in terms of when the directors “take responsibility” for 

the financial statements, i.e. the directors sign the financial statements.  The 
auditor considers the effect of events and transactions of which he becomes 
aware and that occurred up to that date, and cannot sign prior to that date. 

 11.3 There is no indication of who the designated auditor is, what his capacity is, e.g. 
partner and the required term Registered Auditor does not appear. 

 

QUESTION 26 8 marks 

 
b) 1. A description of the nature of the contingent liability. 
 
 2. An estimate of its financial effect. 
 
 3. Any uncertainties relating to either or both the amount and timing of the outflows 

arising from the contingent liability. 
 
 4. The possibility of any reimbursement. 
 
c) 1. To make a provision of R5m in the financial statements at year end would be a 

contravention of the financial reporting standards. 
 
 2. There is no present obligation to pay R5m, it is only a possible obligation.  

Provisions are only made for present obligations. 
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 3. The fact that the accident happened before year end does not determine whether 

a provision or contingent liability is made; the treatment for reporting purposes is 
determined by the state of the obligation (present or possible). 

 
e) 1. No, the matter cannot be ignored.  The event occurred and the claim has been 

lodged for a substantial amount of money. 
 
 2. The overriding requirement is fair presentation – shareholders must be informed of 

this potential loss which is (possibly) 35% of gross profit.  The event is both 
quantitatively and qualitatively material. 

 

QUESTION 27 27 marks 

 
a) To determine whether the going concern basis of accounting would be appropriate, the 

financial, operating and other indicators of going concern should be considered.  
Mitigating factors should also be considered. 

 
1. Financial 
 
1.1 At reporting date, the company was in a net current liability position which is not a healthy 

sign with regard to working capital. 
 
1.2 The extraction of pertinent liquidity ratios reveals adverse conditions within the working 

capital section of the balance sheet: 
 
Current ratio  = 5 902   = .92:1 
6 429 
 
Quick ratio  = 4 376   = .68:1 
6 429 
 
The above ratios, particularly the quick ratio, may be even worse than they appear as the 
debtors balance reflects amounts which are "very difficult" to collect and therefore cannot 
be considered to be "quick assets". 

 
1.3 The company has made a loss in the 2018 period going from a small profit in 2017 to a 

loss which turned retained earnings into an accumulated loss. 
 
1.4 The cash flow position is also very unhealthy 

* As it stands, the company is incapable of paying its creditors as it has no overdraft 
facility to fall back on (it is already over its overdraft limit) and it is struggling to collect 
amounts owed to it by debtors for completed contracts 

* The company also needs to generate cash reasonably quickly through trading. This 
is difficult to do when having to work through a contract tender system, particularly 
when the other party is slow at paying 

* Litefit CC must be paid something.  They are owed R213 816 which has been 
outstanding for over 120 days and they are pressing for payment (see 2 below) 

* the company is negotiating with the bank to extend the bank overdraft which has 
already passed its existing limit.  It is very unlikely that the bank will extend the 
overdraft unless Ray Bright extends his personal guarantee.  There are simply not 
enough non-current assets to support an increase in overdraft. 
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1.5 The net liability position will also need to be considered.  As it stands, shareholders’ 
funds are still positive and if the investment in Kablex (Pty) Ltd is written up to fair value 
this situation improves.  However, there may also be expenses which must be accrued 
e.g. interest on Ray Bright’s loan, and legal fees etc relating to the fire damages. 
However, unless the Kablex (Pty) Ltd investment is sold, the cash flow situation is not 
improved. 

 
1.6 It would seem that the cash flow problem will only be resolved by Ray Bright advancing 

the necessary funds to the company. 
 
2. Operating 
 
2.1 The fact that Litefit CC has not been paid the amount (R213 816) owed to it is potentially 

very harmful as this CC installs fittings on behalf of Swytch (Pty) Ltd. 
* should Litefit CC refuse to do any further installations until they are paid, Swytch 

(Pty) Ltd may incur penalties for failing to fulfil contracts and would certainly 
jeopardise their chances of obtaining future contracts. 

* Other installers may be wary of taking over work which Litefit CC was doing.  They 
will soon discover that Swytch (Pty) Ltd are poor payers. 

 
2.2 Trading conditions have become very competitive and with their weakened financial 

position, Swytch (Pty) Ltd may not be able to compete. 
 
2.3 As indicated earlier, operating a business where the cycle is long and drawn out from the 

time of tendering to the time that payment for the work is received, places a strain on 
operating (and financial) conditions. 

 
3. Other indicators 
 
3.1 The dispute with the construction company may prove to be a further financial drain on 

the company.  Lawyers are trying to obtain a financial settlement and no doubt there will 
be legal fees to be paid. 

 
3.2 If it is not favourably resolved, the construction company may be disinclined to use 

Swytch (Pty) Ltd for further contracts. 
 
4. Mitigating factors 
4.1 The market in which Swytch (Pty) Ltd operates is expected to increase steadily which 

suggests that there is the potential for the company to return to profitable trading (but see 
operating indicators). 

 
4.2 The directors of the company hold 30% of the shares and therefore have a personal 

interest in the survival of the company.  They may be willing to invest in the company to 
secure its future; Shawn Gregg believes the company’s future is assured. 

 
4.3 The company has survived for at least 20 years (Kablex Investment bought in 1998) 

under much the same conditions.  This reflects positively on the directors ability to keep 
the company going. 

 
4.4 The company is fortunate to have no long-term loan repayment obligations.  Ray Bright is 

the only provider of long-term finance and as he owns 70% of the company, he is unlikely 
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to insist on repayment of capital or his interest.  He may even be quite prepared to 
subordinate his loan if it would encourage the bank, for example to extend short term 
finance. 

 
4.5 The company has been awarded another tender. 
 
4.6 The unlisted investment in Kablex (Pty) Ltd is worth R500 000.  This investment could be 

sold to alleviate the liquidity problem.  Disposal of the investment will not affect Swytch 
(Pty) Ltd's operations in any way and may in fact save the company. 

 
b) 
 
I would enquire as to following: 
 
1. Whether the contract had been officially awarded, e.g. written and signed. 
 
2. The commencement date and duration of the contract. 
 
3. Where the company would obtain the finance to … 
 
3.1 purchase materials; 

 
3.2 pay their installers (particularly in view of the amount owed to Litefit (Pty) Ltd.); 

 
3.3 pay other running costs to keep the business going until cash started to flow. 
 
4. Whether the profit margins on the contract were sufficient to improve trading conditions 

(in view of the competitive nature of the business sector.) 
 
5. Whether any realistic arrangement could be made to speed up cash flow from the 

provincial housing authority. 
 
5. Whether the bank had reacted positively. 
 
QUESTION 28      35 marks 
 

Audit Client: Inside Out (Pty) Ltd Date Prepared: 27 April 2018 
Audit year end: 28 February 2018 Prepared by: Luiz Beuthin 
SECTION: UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS Reviewed by: 
 

 
Diffe-
rence 
 
1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Known 
or likely 
 
known  
(factual) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Materiality guideline considerations 
 
 
1. This amounts to an 

overstatement of net income 
(R165 079) and an 
understatement of liabilities of the 
same amount.        

 
 
 
2. In relation to the net profit 

 
Other factors to consider and 

recommendation 
 
1. This amounts to a 

contravention of international 
accounting standards which 
requires that the exchange 
loss be recognized at 28 
February 2018 as it is a cost 
related to that financial year.  

 
2. Syd Spade’s contention that 
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2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Known 
(factual)
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Known 
(factual)  
 

guideline (R272 943), the amount 
is immaterial. 

 
 
 
3. In relation to the current liabilities 

guideline (R192 421), the amount 
is also immaterial. 

 
 
1. The failure to adjust for the 

decrease in value of the property 
amounts to an overstatement of 
R115 000 of property, plant and 
equipment and an overstatement 
of R115 000 of net profit. (As 
there is no revaluation surplus to 
absorb the decrease it must be 
taken to profit and loss.)  

 
 
2. No specific materiality guideline 

for fixed assets or total assets is 
provided; in relation to the current 
assets guideline, the 
overstatement (R115 000) is 
immaterial and would also be 
immaterial in relation to total 
assets.  

 
 
 
3. In relation to the net income 

before tax guidelines, the 
decrease in the value of the 
vacant land is also immaterial in 
itself.    
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. As this is primarily a (qualitative) 

disclosure matter, quantitative 
guidelines are not specifically 

adjustment is not required as 
the amount was paid on due 
date, is of no consequence, it 
is invalid. 

 
3. The loss can be precisely 

calculated and correction is 
straightforward.  It should be 
made. 

 
1. The revaluation policy has 

been in operation for some 
years and to now abandon it 
would amount to a change in 
accounting policy. 

1.1 To be valid, a change in 
accounting policy must, inter 
alia, result in more 
appropriate presentation in 
the financial statements. 

 
2. The revaluation have been 

carried out (each year) by a 
reputable firm of valuers.  It 
appears that Syd Spade’s 
decision is prompted by a 
desire to keep profit (which 
has declined since the 
previous year) from being 
further reduced, and not the 
pursuit of fair presentation. 

 
3. This matter also has 

implications for the 
accounting policy note which 
in all likelihood reflects the 
adoption of the revaluation 
model by the company. 

 
4. Again the necessary 

adjustment can be precisely 
computed and is 
straightforward.  The 
adjustment should be made 
which in turn, will satisfy the 
accounting policy 
disclosures. 

 
1. Despite the fact that the 

correct authority for the 
security was obtained, 
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4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Likely 
(judge-
mental)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

relevant. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. In relation to the current assets 

guideline even the maximum 
suggested understatement of the 
allowance of R320 000 would fall 
below the materiality limit. 

 
2. Similarly in relation to the net 

income before tax guideline 
(R272 943) the likely 
overstatement is immaterial.
      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

disclosure of the details of 
the security (contingent 
liability) is still required in 
terms of 

1.1 Sec 30 of the Companies Act 
2008 which requires 
disclosure of security 
(financial assistance in any 
form) provided to directors. 

1.2 IAS37 which requires that a 
brief description of the nature 
of the contingent liability, an 
estimate of its financial affect 
and any uncertainties relating 
to the contingent liability, be 
disclosed.  

 
2. Contrary to the Board’s 

reasoning, disclosure is 
required to inform users of 
the existence of a potential 
liability dependent on some 
future event. The Board 
cannot control this future 
event. 

 
3. Again this amendment to the 

financial statements is 
straightforward, simply 
requiring additional 
disclosure in the notes.  It 
should be made.  

 
1. Although this is a 

judgemental misstatement, 
there is strong evidence 
(contrary to Syd Spade’s 
contention that it is 
unfounded) to suggest that 
there has been 
understatement of the 
allowance.  The allowance 
for bad debts has been 
reduced as a percentage of 
debtors from 8.25% to 3.38% 
without any apparent 
justifiable reason. 

1.1 credit sales both in amount 
and as a percentage of total 
sales, have increased the 
collection period has 
worsened from 65 days in 
2017 to 89 days in 2018  
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5. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Known  
(factual) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. This amounts to an 
understatement of creditors and 
purchases as well as an 
overstatement of net profit before 
taxation of R211 613.  

 
 In terms of the materiality 

guidelines, this R192 421 is 
material in terms of the current 
liabilities guideline but 
(considered in isolation) is not 
material in relation to the net 
profit before tax guideline 
(R272 943) 

 
 

 If Carly Singh’s lowest 
estimate of the 
understatement (R250 000) 
was used to increase the 
allowance, the percentage for 
2018 would rise to 8.7% 
which looks historically fair. 

 
 Hence we would be in a 

strong position to insist 
upon correction to the 
financial statements. The 
above strongly suggests that 
Syd Spade is intent on 
minimizing the reported 
decline in profits. 

 

1. Syd Spade’s comparison of 
the misstatement to the 
year’s purchases figure is 
meaningless in the context of 
fair presentation. 

 
2. This misstatement of 

creditors combined with 
difference 1, results in an 
understatement of current 
liabilities (a common way of 
manipulating the balance 
sheet) of R376 692 or 9, 8% 
by ignoring easily correctable 
known misstatements.  

 
3. Although the goods relating 

to this purchase were 
correctly included in 
inventory at the financial 
year-end, net profit before tax 
will still be overstated by 
R211 613 because this 
amount has been excluded 
from purchases. 

 
4. This misstatement combined 

with differences 1, 2 and 4 
results in an understatement 
of net income before tax of 
R530 079 (9.7%) which is 
double the relevant 
materiality guideline. 
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5. This misstatement is a 
factual misstatement and is 
easily correctable. It should 
be corrected. 

 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
1. Due to the declining performance of the company, Syd Spade is under pressure from the 

shareholders.  It appears that his unwillingness to make corrections is to avoid further 
reduction of profits. 

 
2. The more significant cumulative effects of the above differences are that (see workings)  
 
2.1 Net income before tax will be overstated by R743 692 (13.62%). 

 
2.2 Current liabilities are understated by R376 692 (9.7%). 

 
Even if only the quantitative factual misstatements are adjusted (ignoring the allowance), 
both net income before tax and current liabilities will be fairly presented.  Failing this, the 
audit report should be qualified.  

 
3. If the necessary corrections for the revaluation of the land are not made, the accounting 

policy note as stated in the financial statements will not have been complied with, and the 
audit report would have to be qualified. 

 
4. In addition, failure to disclose the contingent liabilities in respect of the security for 

directors (known qualitative misstatement) would also result in qualification of the audit 
report. 

 
Quantitative summary – Workings 
 
Net profit before tax     5 458 868 
Less: Foreign exchange loss 165 079 
 Property decrease  115 000 
 Allowance (say)  250 000 
 Cut off    211 613 741 692 
       4 717 176 
Current assets     9 197 740 
Less: Allowance (likely understatement)  250 000 

8 947 740 
 
Current liabilities     3 848 425 
Add:  Foreign exchange  165 079  

Cut-off   211 613 376 692 
       4 225 117 
 
Assets: Property     895 000 
Less: Devaluation      115 000 
       790 000 


